
ANNE ARUNDEL COUNTY, MARYLAND 
Annapolis, Maryland 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

June 14, 2016 
 

IFB NO. 16-083R 
FUEL MANAGEMENT/ADVANCED VEHICLE LOCATION SYSTEM 

 
TO ALL BIDDERS:  Please see the following for the above-mentioned IFB resulting from 
questions from Bidders. 

 
1. The due date and time is changed to July 6, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. 

 
2. Q: Why was the previous RFP cancelled? Is there any new information in this RFP? 

 
A: The County realized that significant information was not included in the previous solicitation 
and elected to cancel the solicitation and start over.  The current RFP 16-083R reflects these 
changes. 
 

3. Q: Can Companies outside the USA provide a Proposal? 
 
A: Yes. 
 

4. Q: Will companies need to come to Anne Arundel County for meetings or to perform tasks? 
 
A:  Yes. 
 

5. Q: Can we submit a Proposal via email? 
 
A: No. 

6. Q: Regarding Clause 2.2.4, Define “integrate” further.  Does the County seek a bidirectional 
“real-time” API based or other method interface, or is a one-way (fuel management to FASTER) 
CSV, Delimited Flat File OK?   

A: The County is seeking “real time” integration. Other options the Offeror wants to be 
considered shall be included in the Technical Proposal with pricing in the Price Proposal.  If you 
are not offering what is required in the Technical Proposal, make certain you also note this on the 
Exceptions Page.  

7. Q: Regarding Clause 2.4.2, as it pertains to the use of TLS v1.2 versus SSL being listed in the last 
RFP, is the County supplying the Web Server Certificates based on TLS or SSL? Does the 
County know if Fleet PC browsers support TLSv1.2?  



A: The browsers currently support TLS v1.2.  The County OIT Department will provide web 
server certificates for SSL v3.0.  The County will be the certificate authority for internal 
applications, and will be upgrading to TLS v1.2 in the near future. 

8. Q: Regarding Clause 2.6.1.1, is a Fuel Control Terminal that has expansion based on a 5 hose 
module board (total max 6 boards) versus the required 4 acceptable to the County?    

 
A: Yes. 

 
9. Q: Regarding Clause 2.6.4.1, as it pertains to the use of TLS v1.2 versus SSL being listed in the 

last RFP, is the County supplying the Web Server Certificates based on TLS or SSL? Does the 
County know if Fleet PC browsers support TLSv1.2?   

A: The browsers currently support TLS v1.2.  County OIT will provide web server certificates for 
SSL v3.0.  The County will be the certificate authority for internal applications, and will be 
upgrading to TLS v1.2 in the near future. 

10. Q: Regarding Clause 2.6.4.7, are Mag cards used to identify users or vehicles?  If not users, what 
is the preferred method of user identification or authorization? 

A: Mag cards are used to identify vehicles only. See also Clause 2.3.3 in RFP 16-083R. 

11. Q: Regarding Clause 2.7.5, will the County accept devices that use 2.4Ghz with operating 
channels (central frequency) 2.412 to 2.462 GHz (11 channels) 802.11 a,b,g.?  

A: Yes 

12. Q: Regarding Clause 2.8.4, will the County accept devices that use 2.4Ghz with operating 
channels (central frequency) 2.412 to 2.462 GHz (11 channels) 802.11 a,b,g. with WPA2 AES? 

Q: Yes- verifying the security component 

13. Q: Regarding Clause 2.8.7,  will the County accept alternative devices and materials that have 
been certified to UL1238A the Standard for Intrinsically Safe Apparatus and Associated 
Apparatus for Use in Class I, II, III, Division 1, Hazardous (Classified) Locations (ANSI/UL 913-
2013, 8th Ed.); Battery Operated Hose Nozzle Valves (ANSI/UL 1238A-2012, 3rd Edition 
Outline, September 28, 2012)?  This standard includes testing for use with multiple fuel types 
including highly corrosive Biodiesels and Ethanol. Drop testing after 24 hours at no less than -
30F at 4 different angles.   The County -40C temperature specification would eliminate Glass-
Reinforced Nylon designs based on those designs may become brittle below zero and may fail 
impact testing at -20C.    

A: Yes, the County will accept. 

14. Q: Regarding Clause 2.8.8,  Will the County accept alternative devices and materials that have 
been certified to UL1238A the Standard for Intrinsically Safe Apparatus and Associated 
Apparatus for Use in Class I, II, III, Division 1, Hazardous (Classified) Locations (ANSI/UL 913-
2013, 8th Ed.); Battery Operated Hose Nozzle Valves (ANSI/UL 1238A-2012, 3rd Edition 
Outline, September 28, 2012)?  This standard includes testing for use with multiple fuel types 



including highly corrosive Biodiesels and Ethanol. Drop testing after 24 hours at no less than -
30F at 4 different angles.   The County -40C temperature specification would eliminate Glass-
Reinforced Nylon designs based on those designs may become brittle below zero and may fail 
impact testing at -20C.   

Q: Yes, the County will accept. 

 

15. Q: Regarding Clause 2.9.5, will the County accept a vehicle EM-Tag device that has a self-
contained power source (battery) that may or may not be serviceable by the County?  

A: A self-contained battery source is acceptable if the battery is guaranteed for a minimum of five 
(5) years. The vehicle EM-Tag shall be serviceable by the County.   

16. Q: Regarding Clause 2.9.5, will the County accept as an equal a device that if it does not “self-
destruct” but is designed with proprietary security features that will not allow it to be used in 
association with another vehicle? 

A: Yes. 

17. Q: Regarding Clause 2.9.7, can the County verify how many “ID Cards” they estimate will be 
required? Does the county have a preference for Magnetic Stripe, HID, HID “Fobs” as a 
credential used to ID for the fuel system?   

A: The County estimates that one hundred (100) magnetic strip cards will be required.  

18. Q: Regarding Clause 2.12.8, as it pertains to the use of TLS v1.2 versus SSL being listed in the 
last RFP, is the County supplying the Web Server Certificates based on TLSv1.2 or some SSL 
version? Does the County know if Fleet PC browsers support TLSv1.2? 

A: The browsers currently support TLS v1.2.  The County OIT will provide web server 
certificates for SSL v3.0.  The County will be the certificate authority for internal applications, 
and will be upgrading to TLS v1.2 in the near future. 

19. Q: Regarding Clause 2.12.18, would the County accept a solution that requires independent 
database servers for the fuel management and AVL platform? For performance reasons our 
recommendation is to separate the AVL and FMS databases and share information between the 
databases via API based or other Web services. The ability to access and share information will 
be transparent across systems and can be deployed in both a physical and/or VM environment.      

A: Yes, the County will accept. 

20. Q: Regarding Clause2.13, please define or give an example of your “user cost elements”  

A: The ability to track costs per vehicle and per vehicle groups (Dept.). i.e. passive vs active 
costs, per vehicle or vehicle group.   



21. Q: Regarding Clause 2.13, please clarify if the 5 second refresh requirement is for the screen or 
the actual polling of data from the vehicle mounted device? Is the County providing a data plan 
that will cover 5 second updates of actual vehicles or should we quote one?  

A: The 5 second refresh is for the polling of data. The Offeror shall provide pricing for a data 
plan in their Price Proposal.  

22. Q: Regarding Clause 2.13, will the County accept a solution that uses “Google Maps” as a 
standard user interface but has the capabilities to add your map layers from the aforementioned 
file types?   

A: Yes. The geolocation data from the AVL shall be consumable by ESRI ArcGIS v10.2. 

23. Q: Regarding Clause 2.13, will the County be providing a data plan that will cover 5 second 
updates of actual vehicles or should we quote one?   

A: The Offeror shall provide pricing for a data plan in their Price Proposal.  

24. Regarding Clause 2.14,  temperature specification conflicts with the previous FMS and OBDII 
specification of -40 – 85C, our recommendation is to use the same specification or change 
everything to -40 to 75C to cover (-40 to 167F).   

A: Change all temperature specifications in this RFP to -40c to 75c 

25. Q: Regarding Clause 2.14.1, “built-in as needed” is rather open ended. Would a solution that 
allows customers to create, manipulate, save and share access to created reports cover this 
requirement?     

A: Yes 

26. Regarding Clause 2.14.1, please expand on what the County is looking for in reports covering 
“material usage, material cost, operating distance”.   

A: Reports shall assemble material usage (salt), areas treated, and costs based on application of 
material (snow plow season).  

27. Q: Regarding Clause 2.14.2.2, would the County accept a solution that requires independent 
database servers for the fuel management and AVL platform? For performance reasons our 
recommendation is to separate the AVL and FMS databases and share information between the 
databases via API based or other Web services. The ability to access and share information will 
be transparent across systems and can be deployed in either a physical or VM environment.   

A: Yes. 

28. Q: Regarding Clause 2.16.1 please clarify; these previous questions seem to infer an Offeror 
hosted application as an option Yes or No? If No; then the data protection and security for 
backups etc. would be the responsibility of the County IT department.   



A: Yes, An Offeror-hosted application shall be an option that is included as part of the Proposal, 
with pricing included in the Cost Proposal only. 

29. Q: Regarding Clause 2.17.1, do the existing County vehicles and or vehicle mounted hardware 
already have, switches, analog or serial outputs that can be connected with; or is the Offeror 
required to wire and supply all the auxiliary hardware to capture this data?   

A: The Offeror shall supply and wire all auxiliary hardware needed to capture the requested data. 

30. Q: Regarding Clause 2.17.2 do the existing County vehicles and or vehicle mounted hardware 
already have, switches, analog or serial outputs that can be connected with; or is the vendor 
required to wire and supply all the auxiliary hardware to capture this data?  

A: The Offeror shall supply and wire all auxiliary hardware needed to capture the requested data. 

31. Q: Regarding Clause 2.17.3, do the existing County vehicles and or vehicle mounted hardware 
require seasonal removal? Without access to these vehicles to inspect the existing switches or 
sensors etc. the assumption of risk would be very high a vendors part would the country   accept 
this part of the RFP as a T&M answer or allow for an inspection period after award before final 
price of installation is submitted?   

A: No equipment shall be removed/disconnected for the “off season”. The chosen cellular carrier 
shall be capable of “sleep mode” service for a portion of the year to reduce costs when active 
AVL is not needed.   

32. Q: Regarding Clause 2.18.1, what is the current Computer Added Dispatch system the County is 
using? Can you name manufacture, make or version # and what county agencies are impacted 
(use) this system?   

A: The current computer aided dispatch (CAD) vendor is Infor (formerly EnRoute), and the 
County is using version 5.0.4B (text mode).  The County is in the process upgrading to a newer, 
3rd generation system.   CAD supports Anne Arundel County Police, AACO Fire, and Annapolis 
City Fire 

33. Q: Regarding Clause 2.18.2, assuming this is a typo and the County is referring to “Trimble 
ASCII Interface Protocol (TAIP)”. Trimble being a specific hardware manufacture and creator of 
this format limited to specific group of vendor products that may not allow the County to get a 
full picture of what may be available to meet the requirements. Would the County allow 
Proposals of solutions that may use alternative formats but meet all the other requirements?  

A: TIAP is a typo, the protocol shall be TAIP.  Other than TAIP, the NMEA 0183 protocols are 
acceptable.  Other protocols shall be listed in the “Exceptions” section of the Proposal. 

34. Q: Regarding Clause 2.18.4, while no Offeror should have an issue communicating with the 
Cisco 3702, it does not meet the county temperature requirements made for outdoor use. Please 
clarify how the County plans to use this device in the project? Cisco as well many other 
manufactures can supply specific outdoor rated models with a IP68-rated metal housing and POE. 

From the CISCO Data Sheet 



Environmental Cisco Aironet 3700i 
●  Nonoperating (storage) temperature: -22° to 158°F (-30° to 70°C)  
●  Nonoperating (storage) altitude test: 25˚C, 15,000 ft.  
●  Operating temperature: 32° to 104°F (0° to 40°C)  
●  Operating humidity: 10% to 90% percent (noncondensing)  
●  Operating altitude test: 40˚C, 9843 ft.  
Cisco Aironet 3700e/3700p 

●  Nonoperating (storage) temperature: -22° to 158°F (-30° to 70°C)  
●  Nonoperating (storage) altitude test: 25˚C, 15,000 ft.  
●  Operating temperature: -4° to 122°F (-20° to 50°C)  
●  Operating humidity: 10% to 90% (noncondensing)  
●  Operating altitude test: 40˚C, 9843 ft.  

 

A: The Cisco 3702 wireless access point shall be replaced by the Cisco 1552i wireless 
networking access point. 

35. Regarding Clause 1.4, Delete “E-mailed questions will not be accepted” (last line in paragraph 
one). 

 
36. Delete Clause 1.17 Proposal Deposit in its entirety. 

 

37. The Technical Proposal (original and all copies) and the Cost Proposal (original and all copies) 
shall be submitted by the Offeror in separate sealed packaging. 
 

38. In Attachment A (Site locations), the following sites will be shut down by the County and will 
not be included in this Agreement:   
Site #3 Central Roads/ Crownsville 
Site #9 Patuxent Wastewater Plant 
Site #10 Glen Burnie Garage  
Site #19 Western Roads 
 
The remaining thirteen (13) sites shall be included in this Agreement. 

 
39. Site #4, Southern Roads, Davidsonville, has been fully refurbished with new 10,000 gallon diesel 

and gasoline tanks (1 each).  Offerors wishing to tour the new site may call Robert Philips at 410-
22-8020 ext. 3030 to schedule a site visit. 

 
40. All other Terms and Conditions remain the same.    
                                     
 
 
 

NOTE:  THIS ADDENDUM AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT MUST ACCOMPANY THE 
BID RESPONSE TO MAKE IT VALID. 
 
Return to: 



   Purchasing Agent 
   Anne Arundel County Heritage Office Complex 
   2660 Riva Road, 3rd Floor, Annapolis, MD 21401 
 
Sir/Madam: 
This will acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1 IFB NO. 16-083R FUEL 
MANAGEMENT/ADVANCED VEHICLE LOCATION SYSTEM 
 
 
 
Date: _________  FIRM NAME: _________________________________ 
                               
                              

 SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 
                       
          TITLE: _______________________________________                                            
                                  Signature shall conform to requirements of the IFB. 


	June 14, 2016
	TITLE: _______________________________________

